
 

 
1 

 

 

Nelson County Planning Commission 
Meeting Minutes 
August 24th, 2022 

 
Present:  Chair Mary Kathryn Allen and Commissioners Chuck Amante, Mike Harman, Mary Kathryn 
Allen, Phil Proulx, Jesse Rutherford and Robin Hauschner 

Staff Present: Dylan Bishop, Director and Emily Hjulstrom, Planner/Secretary 

Call to Order:  Chair Allen called the meeting to order at 7:00 P. M. in the Old Board of Supervisors 
Meeting Room, County Courthouse, Lovingston.  

Review of the minutes July 27th 2022  

Ms. Proulx noted that in the last paragraph “Ms. Adding…” should be corrected. She also noted that the 
closing vote includes Mark Stapleton as opposed to Jesse Rutherford.  

Ms. Proulx made a motion to approve the July 27th minutes with the proposed amendments. Mr. 
Harman seconded the motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Mike Harman 

Phil Proulx 

Robin Hauschner 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Jesse Rutherford 

 

 

Public Hearings 

SUP #690 – LeBlanc Vacation House 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



 

 
2 

 

 



 

 
3 

 

 

Mr. Chris LeBlanc of 459 Afton Mtn Rd. He explained that he and his wife live in Albemarle County and 
have wanted to buy property in Nelson County for a while. He added that they have been in the area for 
about 15 years. They want their boys to be able to have a place to enjoy the woods and to have a 
vacation house there to help offset building costs. He noted that when he bought the property it was all 
zoned A-1 (Agriculture) and that now it shows on their survey that they are R-1 (Residential).  

 

Ms. Proulx asked who would manage the vacation rental. Mr. LeBlanc explained that he and his wife are 
30 minutes away and that she would manage the property. He noted that guests would rent out the 
whole property with rules involved but that they would try to be as remote as possible. He added that 
he has employees that are close to the location.  

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:08 PM.  



 

 
4 

 

Ms. Jeri Lloyd resides at 9332 Rockfish Valley Hwy. She noted that she also owns property behind Glass 
Hollow. She added that she is not in favor of a SUP in a residential area. She explained that she doesn’t 
know what kind of rules would be enforced and wondered what the owners would do if there are issues 
and they are 30 min away. She noted that a 4-bedroom can hold a lot of people when being utilized as a 
vacation rental. She added that in the area, flooding is an issue, and wouldn’t go well with a vacation 
rental. She noted that she is not in favor of the request, especially due to the parcel being zoned R-1 
(Residential).  

Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:10 PM.  

 

Mr. Hauschner asked the applicants if they have a build site on the property. Mr. LeBlanc showed the 
location on the plan. Mr. Amante asked where the access was. Mr. LeBlanc showed the easement on the 
plat.  

Mr. Hauschner asked why the house was four bedrooms. Mr. LeBlanc explained that they have two sons 
and plan to use the fourth bedroom as a play room.  

Mr. Rutherford noted that the split zoning on Afton Mountain Rd is funky. Mr. LeBlanc noted that there 
is an existing precedence of vacation houses in R-1 on that road. Ms. Proulx noted that flooding is 
frequent in that area. Mr. LeBlanc noted that they have not had flooding over their banks in the past 3 
rains. He added he went through Hurricane Katrina and is water sensitive but added that his neighbor 
said that it has crested into the floodplain. 

Ms. Proulx explained that she has mixed feelings, that it is a primarily residential area and that this 
would be changing the character of the area. Ms. Allen asked if the existing vacation houses are zoned 
A-1 or R-1. Staff noted that they would have to gather that data. Mr. LeBlanc noted that he believes one 
of his neighbors has a vacation house in R-1 zoning.  

Mr. LeBlanc explained that he believed the property was A-1 until he got to closing and realized it was R-
1. Mr. Hauschner noted that a lot of people in the County are currently sensitive about short term 
rentals. He noted that there is a distinction between someone building a new structure and is going to 
be living there part time vs. an entrepreneur buying up houses around the County and converting them 
to short term housing. He noted that concern for events and rentals shouldn’t keep people from 
spending time in Nelson.  

Ms. Proulx added that the SUP would stay with the property.  

Ms. Bishop added that a potential condition could be that it’s the owner’s primary residence. Mr. 
LeBlanc added that they don’t intend to make it their primary residence. 

 

Mr. Rutherford noted that there are at least a dozen vacation houses on that road in R-1. Ms. Proulx 
noted that at least one is a Bed and Breakfast, not a vacation house. Ms. Bishop added that vacation 
houses are permitted in R-1 if the majority of the parcel is A-1. Mr. Rutherford noted that the whole 
area needs to be rezoned.  



 

 
5 

 

Mr. Rutherford asked about the floodplain on William’s Creek. Ms. Bishop noted that it is the lowest tier 
of flood zone and that it would require engineering. It was noted that the proposed construction would 
be outside the floodplain. Chair Allen noted that they are creating situations where they don’t have 
housing. Mr. Hauschner noted that this is a new structure and is not someone converting a house that 
could be used for a permanent resident.  

Mr. Amante added that he didn’t know what kind of legal grounds they have to say how many vacation 
houses is too many. Chair Allen added that it’s because it’s a Special Use Permit. Ms. Proulx added that 
the established pattern of development in that area is residential. Chair Allen noted that her issue with 
this SUP is that it stays with the property if the owner changes. Mr. Rutherford added that looking at 
short term rentals over the course of the Comprehensive Plan update will address some of these issues. 
He added that he doesn’t have much of an issue with this specific vacation house as there is not much 
chance that an affordable home could be built there.  

Mr. Rutherford noted that he has a lot of sympathy for Afton Mountain Rd. with the mixed and split 
zoning issues. Mr. Hauschner asked if they had an easement for the driveway.  Mr. LeBlanc explained 
that there is a common road maintenance agreement and that they do know that their neighbor had 
intended to do something similar with their property. He explained that his wife’s goal is not to rent this 
at all but they would rent it out some to try to pay for it so that they could enjoy it the rest of the time. 
He explained that he could have tried to sneak this use in but that he wanted to do the right thing and 
contribute to the community that they are participating in. Mr. Amante asked Mr. LeBlanc if he had 
electricity yet. Mr. LeBlanc noted that just the wire is going to cost $10,000 to come through his current 
easement. He added that they’ve already drilled the well and are getting 9 gallons a minute.  

Mr. Harman made a motion to recommend approval of SUP. Mr. Amante seconded the motion.  

 

Yes: 

Charles Amante 

Mike Harman 

Jesse Rutherford 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Robin Hauschner 

 

No: 

Phil Proulx 

 

AFD #670 – Glass Hollow 

Ms. Hjulstrom presented the following information: 



 

 
6 

 



 

 
7 

 

 

She added that they would be using the same conditions as the Dutch Creek AFD:  



 

 
8 

 

 

 

 

Mr. Andy Wright is the chair of the AFD Committee. Mr. Harman asked how people could opt out of the 
AFD period. Mr. Wright explained that there is the option to review them every 5 years but they have 
not had any reviews because there were no requests for people to leave. Mr. Harman added that his 
own property is in an AFD. Mr. Wright added that none of the districts have requested to leave. Mr. 
Harman noted that this is a great program and he believes everyone to be in favor of it.  

Ben Kessler of 1323 Glass Hollow Rd is the applicant. He explained that Glass Hollow is tucked away and 
bordered on two sides by National Forest. He explained that most of the land is heavily forested. He 
noted that this is a way of recognizing the ecological significance of this area and that he is a botanist by 
trade and settled in Glass Hollow because of the botanical biodiversity. He noted that the first iteration 
of the pipeline was planned to go through Glass Hollow but was then moved due to the attitude of 
people that lived there.  

Mr. Harman asked what would happen if someone wanted to add to the proposed AFD. Ms. Bishop 
noted that neighbors had until the Board of Supervisors meeting to add to the AFD.  

 

Chair Allen opened the public hearing at 7:43. 



 

 
9 

 

Ms. Jeri Lloyd lives at 9322 Rockfish Valley Hwy. She explained that she has property that adjoins the 
area. She explained that she is neither for or against the district. She explained that the letter is dated 
the 11th but that she didn’t get her APO letter until the 19th. She added that she and other families have 
not had the time to research this. She stated that everything sounds very good but that they have 
questions. She asked if it was in conjunction with A-1 zoning or treated as a separate district. She asked 
how it would impact her property if she wasn’t in the AFD but was adjacent to it. She also asked how it 
would impact people in the district. She explained that most of the people in the hollow are for it but 
that a lot of people would like more information before the Planning Commission votes on it.  

Chair Allen closed the public hearing at 7:48. 

 

Mr. Harman noted that there doesn’t seem to be any urgency to approving this tonight and that he 
doesn’t see the issue in delaying it to gather more information.  

 

Ms. Hjulstrom explained that the AFD would not change the underlying zoning of the parcels. The 
parcels are A-1 (Agricultural) and the AFD would not be able to override the A-1 zoning but serves as a 
layer on top. Mr. Amante added that he assumes they would hope to add more people to the AFD over 
time. Mr. Kessler noted that the AFD is currently so patchy because he got Covid during the deadline 
time and he wasn’t able to reach out to everyone.  

 

Ms. Proulx made a motion to postpone the decision on the proposed Glass Hollow AFD until the 
September 28th Planning Commission meeting. Mr. Amante seconded the motion. 

Yes:  

Jesse Rutherford 

Charles Amante  

Mike Harman 

Phil Proulx 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Robin Hauschner 

 

Other Business 

Comprehensive Plan Update 

Ms. Bishop presented the following information: 



 

 
10 

 



 

 
11 

 



 

 
12 

 



 

 
13 

 



 

 
14 

 



 

 
15 

 



 

 
16 

 

 



 

 
17 

 

 

Mr. Rutherford explained that he is trying to encourage more native Nelsonians and the community to 
participate. Mr. Rutherford noted that he has spoken with people that are not interested in coming. He 
added that he told them to imagine that everyone that’s going to disagree with them is going to be 
there and that if they don’t participate they can’t complain about what happens.  

 

Board of Supervisors Report: 

 

Mr. Rutherford noted that he has some upcoming conversations on enforcements for vacation rentals. 
He explained that it is evident that there are a lot of people not paying their taxes. Then added that they 
would have a meeting with Planning and Zoning and the Commissioner of Revenue to review the data 
that they gather. He added that the County will then need to figure out how they want to zone or treat 
short term rentals. He noted that they will be making a directive with a few Board of Supervisors and 
Planning Commission members to have a conversation on potential options.  

Ms. Proulx asked how the Board voted on kennels. Mr. Rutherford noted that it was approved with a 
vote of 3-2. He explained that he sympathized with people with existing kennels that came that day. He 
told these people that if this impacted them that they would reevaluate.  

He added that it will be important to try to get continual engagement from the public in the 
Comprehensive Plan update process. Ms. Proulx noted that it might rub people the wrong way to see 
that they are not as important as people whose great grandparents also lived there. Mr. Rutherford 
explained that he has 100s of families in his district and that it’s important to get them to come. He 
explained that getting everyone to participate is the goal. Chair Allen added that she was born and 
raised here and that when she sees a lot of people that moved to the County 15-20 years ago at these 
meetings and that she feels that the people born and raised here are less likely to show up.  

 

Mr. Amante made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 8:08 PM. Mr. Rutherford seconded the motion.  



 

 
18 

 

Yes:  

Jesse Rutherford 

Charles Amante  

Mike Harman 

Phil Proulx 

Mary Kathryn Allen 

Robin Hauschner 

 

The meeting adjourned at 8:15 PM. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Emily Hjulstrom 

Planner/Secretary, Planning & Zoning 

 

 

 


